
 

 
Published and despatched by democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk on Thursday, 9 September 2021.  

 01476 406080 
Karen Bradford, Chief Executive 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk  
 

 

     

 

 
 

Friday, 17 September 2021 at 10.30 am 
Council Chamber - South Kesteven House, St. Peter's 

Hill, Grantham. NG31 6PZ 
 

This meeting will commence at 10.30am or at the close of the 
meeting of the Licensing Committee, whichever is the later. 

 

 
Cabinet 
Members: 

 
Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth (Chairman) 
Councillor Dean Ward (Vice-Chairman) 
 
Councillor Robert Broughton 
Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing 
Councillor George Chivers 
Councillor Helen Crawford 
Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown 
Councillor Ms Jane Kingman 
Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Nikki Manterfield 
Councillor Lee Steptoe 

 
 

Agenda 

1.   Register of attendance and apologies for absence  
   

2.   Disclosures of interests 
Members are asked to disclose any interests in matters for consideration at the 

meeting. 

 

  
 

 

Alcohol, 

Entertainment & Late 

Night Refreshment 

Licensing Committee 

mailto:democracy@southkesteven.gov.uk
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/
http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 

3.   Minutes of the meeting held on 13 August 2021 
  

(Pages 3 - 7) 

4.   Licensing Act 2003: Application for a Premises Licence - Jorge Fine 
Foods, The Grange, Unit 2, School Lane, Sedgebrook, Lincolnshire, NG32 
2ES 
Report by the Licensing Officer. 

(Pages 9 - 35) 

   
5.   Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent. 
 

   



1 
 

Minutes 
Alcohol, Entertainment & Late 
Night Refreshment Licensing 
Committee 
Friday, 13 August 2021 

 

 
 
 

 
Committee Members present 
  
Councillor Mrs Pam Bosworth 
(Chairman) 
Councillor Harrish Bisnauthsing 
Councillor George Chivers 
Councillor Mrs Rosemary Kaberry-Brown 
 

Councillor Philip Knowles 
Councillor Lee Steptoe 
Councillor Dean Ward (Vice-Chairman) 
 

Officers  
 
Mandy Braithwaite (Legal Executive) 
Chris Clarke (Licensing Officer) 
Graham Watts (Head of Democratic 
Services) 

 
 

 

 
 
5. Register of attendance and apologies for absence 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Robert Broughton, Helen 
Crawford, Jane Kingman and Nikki Manterfield. All other Members of the Committee 
were present, as expected. 
 
6. Disclosures of interests 
 
No disclosures of interest were made. 
 
7. Minutes of the meeting of the Alcohol, Entertainment & Late Night 

Refreshment Licensing Committee - 13 November 2020 
 
The minutes of the meeting of the Alcohol, Entertainment and Light Night Refreshment 
Licensing Committee held on 13 November 2020 were confirmed as a correct record. 
 
 
 

3

Agenda Item 3



 

8. Minutes of the meeting of the Alcohol, Entertainment & Late Night 
Refreshments Licensing Sub-Committee - 21 June 2021 

 
The minutes of the meeting of the Alcohol, Entertainment and Light Night Refreshment 
Licensing Sub-Committee held on 21 June 2021 were confirmed as a correct record. 
 
9. Licensing Act 2003: Application for a Variation of a Premises Licence - The 

Pantry, 6a Market Place, Corby Glen, NG33 4NH 
 
The Licensing Officer presented report number ENV 785 relating to an application for a 
variation of the premises licence for The Pantry at 6a Market Place, Corby Glen, NG33 
4NH. The application was to vary the supply of alcohol of Fridays between June until 
September, 18:00 until 23:00 and anything of a similar description to that falling within 
(e), (f) or (g), namely unamplified music played from a speaker on Fridays from 18:00 
until 23:00. 
 
It was reported that two representations had been received, mainly relating to noise 
from music and guests leaving the premise, however one of the representations had 
since been withdrawn. No representations were received from Lincolnshire Police, 
Environmental Health or Planning or from any other responsible authority. The 
Licensing Team had not received any licensing related complaints since 2013 when a 
premise licence application was granted to allow the applicant to sell alcohol between 
the hours of 08:30 until 19:30 Monday through to Saturday. 
 
The Chairman invited Members of the Committee to ask any question of the Licensing 
Officer’s report and provided the same opportunity to Mrs Roberts, applicant and Mr and 
Mrs Anderson, objectors to the application. 
 
Mr Anderson sought clarification as to the normal process associated with objecting to 
applications such as this as he was surprised that a copy of his objection had been sent 
directly to the applicant. It was reported that it was standard practice in respect of 
licensing applications that any representations received be shared with the applicant in 
order that they had an opportunity to respond to them as it was their licence and not the 
Local Authority’s. 
 
The Chairman invited Mrs Roberts to present her application. The following points were 
noted as part of her presentation: 
 

• the business currently ran seven days a week, from the hours of 9:00 to 16:00 
from Monday to Saturday and 09:00 to 15:00 on Sundays; 

• the variation sought to extend these hours to facilitate social evening events 
between June and September from the hours of 18:00 to 22:00, with customers 
leaving the premises no later than 23:00; 

• low level background music was currently played at the premises and it was 
proposed that the same level of music would be played during later opening 
hours should the variation be approved; 

• during the Covid-19 pandemic a greater level of ventilation was required during 
opening hours to keep people safe. This meant that windows and doors had to 

4



 

be kept open which may have resulted in sound from customers and background 
music travelling further than usual during this period. Unfortunately there was 
very little the business could have done to prevent this; 

• the variation of the licence was critical to the business in enabling it to offer a full 
range of beverages and food which its current licence would not allow it to cater 
for; 

• live music would never be played at the premises. The size of the venue would 
not accommodate this in any case but an assurance was given that this would 
not be a feature of the business; 

• the business had always taken into account neighbouring properties and tried to 
minimise disruption as much as possible. The garden area, for example, was not 
proposed to be used with customers remaining in the premises. It was confirmed 
that the accommodation indoors would cater for up to 30 customers. 

 
The Chairman invited Mr and Mrs Anderson to outline the reasons for their respective 
objections to the application. The following points were noted: 
 

• they had lived in the village of Corby Glen for 35 years and occupied their current 
property for 28 years; 

• whilst their neighbour had been exemplary, their concerns were due to the fact 
that they shared the same building and that the building itself when re-developed 
and divided into its current layout had not been sufficiently insulated. This meant 
that there was no division in areas such as the loft space meaning that sound, 
and smells from cooking, would carry into their living space; 

• the design of the property incorporated an open void in the centre of the building 
which meant that conversations could already be overheard; 

• the building was not double glazed and this was difficult to address due to it 
being located in a conservation area; 

• given the proposed variation, one concern related to the potential for increased 
risk of fire due to later use of the kitchen and there being no staff in the premises 
should a fire occur in the evening; 

• the continued off-sales aspect of the business as part of the licence did not seem 
relevant as there were other businesses such as the Co-operative in the village; 

• the variation would see people drinking alcoholic beverages into the evening and 
parking in the area which would inevitably bring with it more noise, which was a 
concern since their bedroom occupied the front of the property; 

• a principal concern was that this initial variation would see subsequent 
applications be granted to extend opening hours into the evening on more days 
of the week than included as part of this application; 

• it was predominately warmer in the summer, when the variation would take 
effect, meaning that it would be more necessary to windows and doors to remain 
open meaning the channelling of more noise from music and people talking; 

• the business was used as a storage facility when they first bought their property 
so it was never expected that a business such as this would operate from the 
building. 

 

5



 

Further to questions from Members it was noted that most of the points of objection 
were inherent with the design of the building as opposed to the conditions of the 
variation applied for and were therefore not relevant to the application. Mr and Mrs 
Anderson were asked to clarify what they had themselves done to alleviate some of the 
concerns expressed regarding their own property. In terms of sound proofing, which 
was their most significant concern, it was reported that this would be an enormous 
undertaking. The extension of opening hours into the evening was the main problem 
from their perspective in this respect.  
 
Mrs Roberts, in response to the comments made by Mr and Mrs Anderson, highlighted 
that she did not own the premises and was solely a tenant so had limited control over 
the layout and maintenance of the part of the building occupied by her business. She 
added that in operating her business she always gave due consideration to neighbours 
and did as much as she possibly could to make sure everything was done properly, 
causing as little disruption as possible. 
 
The Licensing Officer confirmed that opening hours did not constitute a licensing 
objective, highlighting that the premises could already operate for 24 hours if the 
licensee chose to under their current licence. 
 
As a closing statement the Licensing Officer reminded the Committee that, where 
relevant representations were made, the authority must hold a hearing to consider 
them, unless the authority, the applicant and each person 
who had made such representation agree that a hearing was unnecessary. In having 
regard to the representations, the authority could take one of the following steps as it 
considered necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives: 
 

• grant the variation as applied for subject to conditions that were consistent with 
the operating schedule modified to the extent that the Committee considered 
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives and any mandatory 
conditions that must be included under the Licensing Act 2003; 

• modify the conditions of the licence; 

• reject the whole or part of the variation application. 
 
Mrs Roberts, as a closing statement, emphasised that she always tried to be 
considerate to her neighbours and just wanted to expand her business. 
 
Mr and Mrs Anderson reiterated that they were content with the current operation of the 
business, it was the expansion they were concerned about given the small and quiet 
nature of the village. 
 
In deliberating the application, taking into account the Licensing Officer’s report and all 
representations made at the meeting, it was proposed, seconded and AGREED that the 
application for the variation of the premises licence for The Pantry at 6a Market Place, 
Corby Glen, NG33 4NH be granted. 
 
 
 

6



 

Decision: 
 
That the application for the variation of the premises licence for The Pantry at 6a 
Market Place, Corby Glen, NG33 4NH, be granted. 
 
10. Any other business which the Chairman, by reason of special 

circumstances, decides is urgent. 
 
No other business was considered. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 10:55. 
 
 

7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

 

Licensing Act 2003: Application for a Premises Licence – Jorge Fine Foods, 
The Grange, Unit 2, School Lane, Sedgebrook, Lincolnshire, NG32 2ES  

Committee to determine an application for a premises licence 

Report Author Chris Clarke, Licensing Officer  

 

 
01476 406080 

 licensing@southkesteven.gov.uk 

 

Corporate Priority: Decision type: Wards: 

Healthy and Strong 
Communities 

Regulatory All Wards 

 

Reviewed by: Heather Green, Licensing Team Leader  10 September 2020 

 

Recommendation (s) to the decision maker (s) 

That the Alcohol, Entertainment and Late Night Refreshment Committee consider this 
application for a new premises licence at a premises known as Jorge Fine Foods, The Grange, 
Unit 2, School Lane, Sedgebrook, Lincolnshire, NG32 2ES and, the views of the 
representations made by members of the public bearing in mind the four licensing objectives: 

• The Prevention of Crime and Disorder 

• Public Safety 

• The Prevention of Public Nuisance 

• The protection of children from harm  

 

Alcohol, Entertainment and Late Night Refreshment 
Licensing Committee 

17th September 2021 

  

 

ENV 790 

 

         
  

9

Agenda Item 4

http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgMemberIndex.aspx?bcr=1
https://twitter.com/intent/tweet?text=Meeting%20agenda%20@southkesteven
http://www.linkedin.com/shareArticle?mini=true&url=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1
http://facebook.com/sharer/sharer.php?u=http://moderngov.southkesteven.gov.uk/mgWhatsNew.aspx?bcr=1


 

 
 

 

 

1 The Background to the Report 

1.1 On 29th June 2021 an application was received by the Licensing team for a new premises 

licence for a convenience store and off-licence at the above location. The application was 

processed and forwarded to all the responsible authorities. The consultation period of 28 days 

expired on 27th July 2021.  (Appendix 1) 

1.2 The application is for: 

a) Supply of alcohol 10:00 – 22:30, Mon to Thurs & Sun, 10:00 – 00:30 Fri & Sat.  

b) Provision of Live Music 18:00 – 23:30, Mon to Sun. 

c) Late night Refreshment 23:00 – 00:30, Fri – Sun.  

1.3 During the consultation period the authority received several representations mainly relating 

to parking, opening hours and noise from the premises, *all but one of these 

representations have been withdrawn*.   (Appendix 2) 

1.4 One representation by way of observation has been received from Planning. As the unit 

requires planning permission to be used as a deli. (Appendix 3) No further representations 

were received from Lincolnshire Police, Environmental Health or from any other responsible 

authority.  

1.5 Licensing Officers have the delegated authority to decide whether a representation is 

relevant, vexatious, or frivolous however, Section 9 of the Revised Guidance issued under 

section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 states: 

9.9 It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any 

aspect of a representation should be given to the person making that representation.  

The subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for the person or body 

making the representation to amplify and clarify it. 

                   

2 Options available to the Committee 

2.1 Where relevant representations are made, the authority must: - 

i. Hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and each person 

who has made such representation agree that a hearing is unnecessary, and 

ii. Having regard to the representations, take such steps mentioned below (if any) as it 

considers necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.   

The steps are: 

iii. Grant the licence subject to conditions that are consistent with the operating schedule 

modified to the extent that the Committee considered appropriate for the promotion of 

the licensing objectives and any mandatory conditions that must be included under the 

Licensing Act 2003 

iv. Exclude from the scope of the licence a licensable activity to which the application 

relates. 

v. Refuse to specify a person in the licence as a Premises supervisor. (DPS) 

10



 

 
 

vi. Reject the application. 

2.2 The licensing authority should give appropriate weight to; 

❖ The steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives 

❖ The representation (including supporting information) presented by the parties. 

❖ The guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. 

❖ South Kesteven District Council’s Licensing Policy.  

 

2.3 The guidance issued under Section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 states at 9.37 that; 

“As a matter of practice, Licensing Authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the steps 

considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or objectives that have 

given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into undisputed areas.  A 

responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their written representation. 

They may not add further representations to those disclosed to the applicant prior to the 

hearing, but they may expand on their existing representation and should be allowed 

sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and practical time limits. 

3 Financial Implications  

3.1 There are no specific financial implications associated with this report, however, in the event 

of an applicant, responsible authority or interested person making an appeal against a 

decision which was then subsequently upheld, the council may incur additional costs. 

Financial Implications reviewed by: Richard Wyles, Director of Finance 

4 Legal and Governance Implications  

4.1 This is an application for a new premises licence under S17 of the Licensing Act 2003.  The 

Committee should consider whether the application is likely to impact on the promotion of the 

licensing objectives.  In reaching the decision the Committee should consider, the steps that 

are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives, the representation (including supporting 

information) presented by the parties, the guidance issued under S182 of the Licensing Act 

2003 and the Councils own statement of licensing policy. 

Legal Implications reviewed by: Mandy Braithwaite, Legal Executive 

5 Equality and Safeguarding Implications  

5.1 Not applicable 

6 Risk and Mitigation 

6.1 Not applicable 

7 Community Safety Implications  

7.1 Community Safety implications will be considered in accordance with the licensing objectives 

and the duty to consider in accordance with S17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998. 

8 Appendices 

1. Application for a premises licence 

2.  Representation from Interested parties 

3. Observation from Planning 

11



 

 
 

9 Background Papers 

9.1 Statement of Licensing Policy 6 January 2016 

www.southkesteven.gov.uk/licensingpolicy 

9.2 Guidance to applicants 

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8303 

9.3 Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003 

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_d

ata/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003

__April_2018_.pdf 

 

 

 

 

12

http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/licensingpolicy
http://www.southkesteven.gov.uk/index.aspx?articleid=8303
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/705588/Revised_guidance_issued_under_section_182_of_the_Licensing_Act_2003__April_2018_.pdf


13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33

chrisclarke
Sticky Note
Accepted set by chrisclarke



This page is intentionally left blank



35



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the meeting held on 13 August 2021
	4 Licensing Act 2003: Application for a Premises Licence - Jorge Fine Foods, The Grange, Unit 2, School Lane, Sedgebrook, Lincolnshire, NG32 2ES
	Appendix 1
	Appendix 2
	Appendix 3




